
MINUTES 
 

CITY OF GLENDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 

PUBLIC HEARING #1 
GLENDALE MUNICPAL OFFICE COMPLEX 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5850 W. GLENDALE AVENUE 

GLENDALE, ARIZONA 
 

Wednesday, January 8, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 

  
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cherie Hudson, Vice Chair 
     Chuck Jared 

Matthew Versluis 
Shirley Wong 
Randy Miller 
John Torres  
Pattie Johnston 
Marcellous Sanders 
Ronald Jauregui 
Cathy Cheshier 
Sue Pederson 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
      
STAFF PRESENT:   Gilbert Lopez, Revitalization Administrator 
     Sam McAllen, Executive Director   
     Mona Francis, Revitalization Supervisor 
     Elizabeth Garcia, Revitalization Coordinator 
     Beth Coughenour, Senior Secretary 
 
I. Call to Order and Introductions 
 

Vice Chair Hudson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
II. Roll Call 
 

Committee-members introduced themselves. 
 

III. Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 – Reallocation of Funding in the Amount of $390,000 to 
Norwood Village LLC/Gorman Group 
 
Mr. Lopez explained that staff has identified $390,000 in Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 
administrative and demolition funding that could be allocated to an existing project.  Mr. Lopez 
indicated that the funds could be used for solar upgrades and additional construction costs at 
Norwood Village, which is an existing project.   
 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

Committee-member Miller motioned to reallocate $390,000 of the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program 3 administrative and demolition funding to Norwood Village/Gorman 
Group. Committee-member Torres made the second.  The motion passed 11 – 0. 
 

IV. Public Comment 
 

Vice Chair Hudson opened the floor to public comment on the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 funding 
recommendations. 

 
No comments were made.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson closed the floor to public comment on the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 funding 
recommendations. 

 
IV.     Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Service 

Funding Requests 
 

Vice Chair Hudson explained that during this meeting, fourteen Public Service activity funding 
requests would be presented by agency representatives.   
 
Mr. McAllen thanked the Committee-members for their time commitment to the City of Glendale 
and its citizens.  Mr. McAllen noted that due to the great needs of the community and limited 
funds, the process is very challenging.   
 
Mr. Lopez thanked the Committee-members for their participation and the agency representatives 
for their attendance at the hearings.  Mr. Lopez stated based on last year’s allocation, it is 
estimated that the available funds for Public Services would amount to approximately $315,000.  
Mr. Lopez noted that the total amount requested for Public Services is approximately $706,000.  
Mr. Lopez stressed that the available amount is estimated based on the prior year funding and any 
changes in the actual amount from the federal government would be applied to the recommended 
grants on a pro-rata basis.  Mr. Lopez introduced staff and noted that staff is available for any 
clarifications necessary.  Mr. Lopez added that staff has performed all technical reviews of the 
applications prior to the hearings.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson stated that presentations are limited to four minutes.  Committee-members are 
encouraged to ask clarifying questions and there would be no time limit on this question and 
answer period.  Vice Chair Hudson asked if any of the presenters needed an English-to-Spanish 
translator.  There were no requests.  
  
Presentations for the following programs were made: 

 
1. City of Glendale Community Action Program – Eviction Program - $75,000 request 

 
Ms. Rebecca Daniel, Program Administrator, stated that the goal of these programs is to prevent 
homelessness via emergency rent or mortgage assistance.   
 

 Ms. Daniel provided the following information: 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 

• Each month, approximately five to fifty families are assisted and additional monies would 
allow the department to help more Glendale residents.   

• All funds will go directly to assistance, not toward administrative costs. 
• Staff verifies birth certificates and social security numbers of the applicants. 
• There are a variety of reasons families need emergency assistance.  This includes loss of 

income, increased medical bills and other unforeseen circumstances.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson inquired as to audit notations in the grant application.  Ms. Daniel stated that 
the Community Action Program department has not had audit issues.  Ms. Francis clarified that 
this audit comment was in regards to another department.   
 
Committee-member Miller inquired if the Department worked with landlords to waive any 
pending late fees.  Ms. Daniel replied in the positive.   
 
Committee-member Wong inquired if staff partners with other agencies for client assistance.  Ms. 
Daniel stated that staff does contact other agencies for additional support services when necessary.   
 
Committee-member Torres inquired as to the reasons that the Department might have to turn away 
a client.  Ms. Daniel explained that sometimes a resident does not have appropriate documentation 
for verification or a client might be just above the income limits.  When a client is turned away, 
staff does refer the client to other agencies for assistance.  Ms. Daniel noted that the Department 
phone line is always busy and all appointments are fully booked.     

 
Committee-member Torres praised the Department on a job well done. 

 
Vice Chair Swander thanked Ms. Daniel for her time.  

 
2. Florence Crittenton Services of Arizona – Life Skills Program for Homeless Families -

$35,000 request 
 

Ms. Kary Goitia, Director of Community Services, gave a presentation which included the 
following program details: 
 
• Florence Crittenton Services of Arizona is a social services agency that has been serving the 

community for 117 years.  
• The Life Skills Program has been in existence for approximately ten years.   
• There are currently over 800 homeless families in the Glendale Elementary School District 

(GESD).   
• This request is to expand the Life Skills Program to reach out to those homeless families via 

the GESD.  For this pilot program, the funds requested would be for two new Case Specialists.  
• The Case Specialist will meet with families on a weekly basis to work on life skills such as 

resume creation, job applications, parenting skills, education, budgeting and other important 
tasks.   

 
Committee-member Miller asked if two Case Specialists would be enough to handle the number 
of potential clients.  Ms. Goitia stated that based on current caseload, the estimation is doable.   



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 4 
 
 

Committee-member Miller inquired about the audit results in the areas of expense accruals and 
overstatement of net assets.  Ms. Goitia will provide information to staff in regards to the audit.   
 
Committee-member Sanders asked how eligibility for the program was determined.  Ms. Goitia 
explained that GESD staff would determine program eligibility and make referrals to Florence 
Crittenton.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Goitia for the presentation.   

 
3. The Society of St. Vincent de Paul – Keeping Families Together - $69,500 request 

 
Ms. Roseanne Gutierrez, of the St. Vincent de Paul Society at Our Lady of Perpetual Help, 
provided the following highlights of the program: 
 
• The agency appreciates the past support from the City of Glendale. 
• The agency provides assistance with a variety of needs such as rent, food, utilities, medical, 

dental, clothing and even furniture.   
• A Back to School drive is held for the agency and 350 children were helped with the 

Christmas Drive. 
• With more funds, the agency can assist more families and individuals. 
• The program is run 100% by volunteers from the church, no paid staff and no overhead.  
• Nearly 100% of the money received goes to assisting the clients.  A small amount of money is 

set aside for a financial audit as required.    
• Volunteers must check for proof of address to ensure that the client is within City of Glendale 

boundaries.  
• Staff collaborates with other agencies when necessary to help meet clients’ needs. 

 
Committee-member Torres inquired as to the amount of people the agency is unable to assist each 
month.  Ms. Gutierrez replied that approximately 100 people are turned away each month.  Ms. 
Gutierrez explained that this is due to the fact that some individuals need more assistance than the 
agency is able to provide or there are more requests for appointments than the volunteers can 
handle.  Ms. Gutierrez stressed that the agency does try to find other partners who can help those 
who are turned away.   

 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Gutierrez for her time. 

 
4. Chrysalis Shelter for Victims of Domestic Violence, Inc. – Victim Services - $15,000 request 

 
Mr. Randy Koeppen, Victim Advocate, gave a presentation which included the following 
information: 
 
• Chrysalis has been in existence since 1981. 
• Chrysalis is a domestic violence agency which provides shelter, transitional housing, victim’s 

advocates and outpatient services for the victims and their children.   
• Domestic violence is a tremendous problem in the community.    



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 5 
 
 

• For FY 2013-14, the outpatient goal was noted as 80 clients; however, 37 were seen in the first 
three months of the fiscal year.  For the full FY 2103-14, it is now estimated that over 100 
Glendale residents will be assisted.   

• Chrysalis is participating very heavily in the City of Glendale because Chrysalis is receiving 
referrals from the City Court for Victims Advocates participation in review hearings in order 
to keep victims safe and the offenders accountable.    

 
Committee-member Miller inquired as to the reason a client’s income is not formally verified.  
Mr. Koeppen stressed that a client would not be in the shelter, if they could afford to live any other 
place.  Mr. Koeppen noted that clients are asked to report their income, but it is not formally 
verified.   
 
Committee-member Miller inquired if a client’s recidivism rate is considered upon intake and if a 
first-time client has priority over a repeat client.  Mr. Koeppen explained that the domestic 
violence cycle is very hard to break and a victim can go back to the abuser many times before 
finally leaving for good.  Mr. Koeppen stated that each case is reviewed on an individual basis.   
 
Committee-member Johnston asked about the issue noted in the application regarding fingerprint 
clearance cards that were not renewed in a timely manner.  Mr. Koeppen stated that Human 
Resources does check to make sure the cards are current.  Each employee must then renew their 
fingerprint clearance cards when necessary. 
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Mr. Koeppen for his presentation. 
 
5. St. Mary’s Food Bank Alliance – Glendale Home Food Delivery - $30,000 request 

 
6. St. Mary’s Food Bank Alliance – Emergency Food Boxes Serving Youth/Family - $30,000 

request 
 

Mr. John Kozyra thanked the City of Glendale for support received in the past.  Mr. Kozyra 
provided a presentation which included the following information: 
 
• The mission of St. Mary’s is to gather and distribute food back into the community to those in 
  need.  
• The Home Food Delivery and the Emergency Food Box Program are similar because both 

consist of staple foods such as bread, meat, vegetables, fruit, cereal, and pasta, but the senior 
box includes cheese which the emergency boxes do not.    

• The Home Food Delivery is a program for shut-ins such as seniors, the disabled and those  
who have no transportation.  Mr. Kozyra shared a story of the impact of the program on an 
elderly woman who used to take a taxi to get food, but the transportation cost became too 
prohibitive.   Many of the clients enjoy the visit by the delivery driver which also gives the 
driver a chance to check on the status of the client.   

• The Emergency Food Box Program serves the working poor from two primary distribution 
 sites:  Hope For Hunger and the Salvation Army.  However, St. Mary’s works with 
approximately 31 agencies in total.     

• The need for food has always been great, however, due to the economy it has been increasing.       
 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 

Committee-member Versluis asked if any of the clients in the Home Delivery Program are able to 
prepare their meals.  Mr. Kozyra stated that all of the clients have to qualify and be able to prepare 
their meals.  If they are unable to prepare meals, the client would be better served by the Meals on 
Wheels program.   
 
Committee-member Torres stated that he called the St. Mary’s Food Bank phone number on the 
grant application and asked about the Home Delivery Program.  Committee-member Torres was 
told by two people at that time that there was no homebound delivery program and was referred to 
Hope for Hunger.  Mr. Kozyra apologized for the incorrect information and stated that there has 
been some staff shifting recently, which may have contributed to the errant information.     
 
Committee-member Sanders inquired about the role of volunteers.  Mr. Kozyra stated that 
volunteers pack food boxes, but are not delivery drivers.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Mr. Kozyra for his presentation. 

 
7. YWCA of Maricopa County – Congregate Meals - $70,000 request 

 
Ms. Kathleen Saunders represented the agency and provided the following comments regarding 
the program: 
 
• Through the Congregate Meals Program, a warm, nutritionally balanced meal is provided to 

the elderly population.   
• Based on a survey of clients, 50% report that the Congregate Meal is their main meal of the 

day and more than 30% report that it is their only meal of the day.  This illustrates the 
importance of the program. 

• 100% of the funds will pay for the raw food and supplies needed to prepare, serve and clean up 
the meals. 

• Meals are served Monday through Friday in the City of Glendale by staff and volunteers. 
• The goal for FY 2014-15 is to serve 27,000 meals to 500 residents.   
• The mission of the program is to keep seniors in their homes as long as possible, to provide a 

nutritious meal, to provide socialization and maintain the seniors’ independence.     
• The majority of disabled and elderly served have limited income and rely on this meal.   
 
Committee-member Miller stated that he recently attended a meal and the servers were very 
friendly and the socialization aspect was very apparent.   
 
Committee-member Sanders commented on a recent meal stating that it was delicious and the 
camaraderie was wonderful.   
 
Committee-member Torres also attended a recent meal and praised the food and job done by the 
staff and servers.   
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 7 
 
 

8. YWCA of Maricopa County – Home Delivered Meals Program (Meals on Wheels) - $70,000 
request 

 
Ms. Saunders addressed the Committee regarding the application and provided the following 
information: 
 
• The program provides a nutritionally balanced meal to home-based elderly and disabled people 

including a well-check.   
• Diabetic, low sodium and weekend meals are available per request.   
• 100% of the grant funds will be used for raw food and supplies needed to prepare the meals.   
• The goal in Fiscal Year 2014/2015 is to serve 56,000 meals to 485 Glendale residents.   
• 100% of recipients report less than $25,000 of annual income. 
• 70% of recipients report less than $10,000 of annual income.   
• Clients are homebound, physically unable to prepare their meal and/or have no other way to 

obtain a meal.   
• More than 35% of recipients report that this is their main meal of the day. 
• For some clients, this is their only contact with the outside world.  
• All drivers are trained to respond to observed changes in client condition and to be aware of 

signs such as a fall, abuse or a medical need. 
• Each client has an assigned Case Manager, but the driver is the eyes and ears in between visits 

by the Case Manager. 
 
Ms. Saunders shared a written client testimonial regarding the importance of the program.   

 
Committee-member Miller asked for more clarification on the weekend meal.  Ms. Saunders 
explained that upon determination by a Case Manager, a weekend meal is delivered during the 
week.  This is a frozen meal to be eaten on the weekend as there is no weekend delivery.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Saunders for the information. 

 
9. Duet: Partners in Health & Aging – Independence for Seniors Through In-Home Services & 

Transportation - $13,500 request 
 

Ms. Elizabeth Banta, Executive Director, represented Duet and was accompanied by Ms. Lily 
Cobb, a client, and a program volunteer.    

 
Ms. Banta stated that the requested funds would help 110 clients maintain their independence 
through 3,200 volunteer hours of assistance with transportation to doctors and grocery stores and 
other necessities.  Ms. Banta stated that the grant request will fund 24% of the cost to assist 
Glendale residents.  Ms. Banta noted that the agency services help seniors to remain in their 
homes.  
 
Ms. Cobb, who is 89 years old, described the services she has received from Duet and stressed that 
the agency has been very important to her because she does not have family in town.   
 
There were no Committee-member questions.   



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 8 
 
 

 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Banta for the presentation. 

 
10. Back-to-School Clothing Drive Association – New Clothes, New Beginnings Annual 

Distribution - $20,000 request 
 

Mr. Karl Gentles, Executive Director, provided information on the program, including the 
following: 
 
• The program consists of two paid employees.  With staff and many volunteers, the program 

serves 5,000 children directly and 4,000 children indirectly.  550 Glendale Elementary School 
District children are served from 6 schools.   

• The drive meets the basic need of clothing.   
• The annual back pack and clothing distribution is in its 18th year.  
• At the Back to School Clothing Drive, children are provided with new school uniforms, 

clothes, shoes and a backpack.  The drive is held annually in the summer.   
• Many children do not want to attend school because they do not have proper clothes or shoes 

to wear.  Some children have to share one pair of shoes with their siblings.   
• The value of the items provided to the children of Glendale last year was approximately 

$175,000.  This is a good return on investment for the $20,000 request. 
 
Committee-member Miller noted the low attendance at the Back to School Drive last summer and 
inquired about the attendance rate.  Mr. Gentles stated that 550 Glendale children were invited and 
371 attended the event.  Mr. Gentles explained that because the event is held in July, there are 
some no-shows due to the time of year.  Furthermore, some schools do run into transportation 
issues during the summer months.  Mr. Gentles stated that the materials are packed up and 
delivered to the schools for the missing children.  Mr. Gentles noted that if a school has a chronic 
issue with no-shows, the school will be removed from the program and another school will be 
invited.  Mr. Gentles stressed that there is a long wait list to be in the program.   
 
Committee-member Torres noted that the schools must pay for the cost of the school bus to 
transport the children to the event, which could be a challenge during that time of the year.    
 
Committee-member Jared inquired if the agency has contacted the Phoenix Coyotes for support.  
Mr. Gentles stated that the Coyotes have supported the program in the past, but not recently.  Mr. 
Gentles commented that with the recent change in management, there might be another 
opportunity for a partnership with the Coyotes.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Mr. Gentles for his presentation.   

 
11. Boys & Girls Clubs of Metropolitan Phoenix – Swift Kids Branch After-School Program - 

$10,000 request 
 

Mr. Brad Kuluris, Chief Operations Officer, addressed the Committee and introduced Ms. Nicole 
Torrez, a staff member.  Mr. Kuluris thanked the Committee for its past support.   

 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 9 
 
 

Mr. Kuluris provided the following details regarding the After School Program at the Swift Kids 
Branch in Glendale: 
 
• The after-school program focuses on academic success, community service, healthy choices 

and having fun with a purpose. 
• The program gets $19.30 of value out of each $1.00 due to corporate partnerships.  
• There are 700 participants in the club, of which 355 are from the City of Glendale.   
• Over 20,000 hot meals are served annually at the after-school program.   
• The Club provides a safe place for youths in a challenged neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Kuluris introduced Alejandra, Youth of the Year, who gave testimony about her experience 
with the center and its positive impact on her life.   
 
Committee-member Versluis inquired as to the age limit for the after-school program.  Mr. 
Kuluris explained that the program serves youth from kindergarten through high school.  Mr. 
Kuluris noted that 90% of the kids in the program graduate high school due to the encouragement 
and support from staff members and volunteers.   
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Mr. Kuluris, Ms. Torrez and Alejandra for their time. 

 
12. Boy Scouts of America, Grand Canyon Council – Scouting’s Traditional Character 

Development Program - $5,000 request 
 

Mr. Fernando Gomez, District Executive for the Northwest Valley, provided information on the 
grant request and program, which included the following information: 
 
• Through the experiences at the Boy Scouts, it is hoped that boys will make ethical and moral 
  choices over a lifetime by instilling the values of scout law. 
• The funds requested will be used for the recruiting and training of volunteers who in turn will 
  recruit and work with new scouts and also for program materials. 
• There are many children whose parents cannot afford to send their children to formal sports 
  programs and scouting is a great way to serve these children. 
• The Boy Scouts of America is mainly a volunteer driven organization. 

 
Committee-member Miller noted that the grant application states that the funds would be used for 
camp scholarships and uniforms.  Mr. Gomez stated that the funds could be used for that, as well 
as the recruiting and training of volunteers to develop more scout troops.   
 
Committee-member Torres inquired as to the amount of Glendale youth that are served.  Mr. 
Gomez stated that he currently works with one unit of 25 boys.  However, there are 5,600 
Glendale youths that could potentially be served.  There are 57,000 youths served in total in the 
Grand Canyon Council.  Mr. Gomez noted that with the additional funds, five units of 25 boys 
each could potentially be established in Glendale.   

 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Mr. Gomez for his presentation. 

 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 10 
 
 

13. Foundation for Senior Living – Glendale Adult Day Health Services Center - $18,500 request 
 

Ms. Mary Servin provided the information on the agency’s grant request, which included the 
following: 
 
• The agency has been in the west valley since 1991.   
• There are 120 registered participants, of which 57 are Glendale residents. Of the 57 Glendale  
 residents, it is estimated that 36 residents would participate in the program.   
• This request is for the funding of a new program designed for social media training for seniors 
  and the disabled. 
• Due to the move in society towards social media, it is important for seniors and the disabled to 

learn the new technology in order to maintain communication with family members and 
friends.  Furthermore, technological skills can aid with independence, quality of life and social 
interaction.   

• The funds would be used to purchase devices such as computers, materials and manuals and 
 for a contracted person to assess and provide training on the devices.   
• Income eligibility is tracked and verified.   
  
Committee-member Versluis inquired if the participants had the resources to buy the technology 
that they would be trained on.  Ms. Pamela Acton, an agency representative in attendance, 
explained that the devices would remain in the training center for use.  Ms. Acton stated that many 
seniors have never used such technology and would benefit from the training.   
 
Committee-member Miller commented that small screens on the laptops could be hard for a senior 
to read and suggested the use of larger personal computers, which would be less expensive and 
easier for viewing.  Ms. Acton commented that the contractor would be used for an assessment as 
to what type of computers and devices would work best for the clients.  Committee-member 
Miller asked if the contractor performing the assessment was to be paid.  Ms. Acton replied in the 
positive.  Committee-member Miller stated that he is in the technology business and offered to 
perform the assessment for the agency at no cost.   

 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Servin and Ms. Acton for their time.  

 
14. One Step Beyond, Inc. – Employment Program for People with Developmental Disabilities - 

$5,000 request 
 

Ms. Jen Willis, Director of Employment Services, provided the information on the agency’s grant 
request, which included the following: 
 
• The agency provides day programming and vocational services for the developmentally 
 disabled. 
• 30 Glendale residents and 37 businesses in Glendale participate in the program. 
• Participants have challenges such as epilepsy, autism and cerebral palsy.    
• The participants seek meaningful employment in order to garner independence, self-esteem 
 and job skills. 
• Job coaches play an integral role of employment assessment, skills, on the job coping 



Minutes of the Community Development Advisory Committee 
January 8, 2014 
Page 11 
 
 

strategies and more.  Job coaches work alongside the participants to ensure successful 
outcomes for the employee and the employer. 

• As a participant becomes seasoned and successful in their job, the job coach transitions from 
 supervisor to mentor. 
• The funds requested will be used for a job coach salary for three months.   
 
Committee-member Miller mentioned an employee at Safeway who might be part of the One Step 
Beyond program.  Ms. Willis replied in the positive and added that Safeway is one of its biggest 
partners.  
 
Vice Chair Hudson thanked Ms. Willis for her presentation.  
 

 
VII.   Adjournment 
 
Committee-member Miller motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:19 p.m. Committee-member 
Jared made the second.  The motion passed 11 – 0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Denise Kazmierczak 
Recording Secretary 
 


	Denise Kazmierczak

